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Purpose:

The purpose of today’s session was to update contractors and customers on the upcoming FY09 contract. Today’s session was not a pre-solicitation meeting. The pre-solicitation meeting is scheduled for February 5th, 2008. Brief updates were given by Peter Kapsales (GSA), Vincent Aquilino (GSA), and Bernadette Mount (GSA). Questions were taken following each update.           

Material: 

For today’s session, the following documents were presented to the group:

· Session Agenda 

· Travel MIS/BI Solution (Peter Kapsales)

Opening Remarks and Introductions:

To begin, Peggy Williams (3TI) introduced the GSA and contracting team, stated the meeting objectives, and asked that the Q & A after each update be constructive and controlled. 

Vincent Aquilino then kicked off the session by allowing attendees to introduce themselves and stating the purpose of the meeting.    

Meeting  

During today’s session, contractors and customers were provided updates on the following:   

· Travel MIS/BI Solution (Peter Kapsales, GSA) 

· Small Business Sub-Contracting (Bernadette Mount, GSA)

· Ticketing Time Limits and Change/Cancellation Fees (Vincent Aquilino, GSA) 

The following matrix provides highlights of today’s discussions, questions and answers, and resulting action items. 

	Topic & Speaker
	Discussion
	Comments & Questions

	Travel MIS/BI Solution: Data Aggregation, Reporting, and Analysis to Manage Travel for the Federal Government  

Peter Kapsales

GSA
	The issue of travel spending and data is a management issue run by data people. The travel MIS/BI solution is to aggregate and control data. 

The approach:

1. Conduct market research and identify customer requirements

2. Select commercial services solution

3. Outsource the MIS/BI solution 

4. Phase-in capability over time

5. Start by addressing areas with the greatest payback 

6. Focus on standard management information system reporting initially, and later progress towards more sophisticated analysis

The problem: 

1. Spending: the federal government is the world’s largest buyer of travel ($15.4 billion spent in 2006; each 1% increase in inefficiency equates to $154 million in cost to the Federal Government).

2. Limited ability to manage travel (reservations made through different channels; data difficult to aggregate; data inconsistently defined and used; government tend to drive towards multiple vendors).  

The answer is to move towards a proven solution. First, collect data to get a better picture of travel spending, then take appropriate action. 

The benefits:

1. Cost avoidance 

2. ROI of 1400% realized from MIS/BI reporting and analysis that (1) improves understanding of volume of travel with suppliers and markets; (2) increases utilization of existing travel programs; (3) provides integrated view of travel across federal and agency levels; (4) improves ability to detect fraud and slippage; (5) measures policy compliance; (6) supports effective policy development. 

The outcome and benefited parties:

1. PMO: Provide tools for agencies to manage travel

2. Agencies: Information and products that allow agencies to measure effectiveness and compliance 

3. OGP/OMB: Improved ability to monitor travel costs, which insures efficient policy development

4. Ad Hoc Requests: Ability to fulfill Congressional and administrative requests for information     

As it is today, E-GOV solutions include graphics, reporting, and ability to sort information 


	Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): How long has the system been in its current format? 

Peter Kapsales Response: Trial is in its second month. The process is ongoing and we want to expand capability. There’s no one answer, but supplier data is key. 

Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): Will GSA share its airline data with airlines?

Peter Kapsales Response: Yes, with airlines’ individual data. However, sharing of competitor data would have to be approved. 

Question (John Lundeby, HQ AMC): Will this system be able to track unused tickets? 

Peter Kapsales Response: Yes, we are addressing the problem. We need supplier data. 

Comment (Tom Billone, United Airlines): In terms of supplier data, the best sources for the Government will be the TMCs. 

Comment (Tim Burke, GSA): Yes, it is critical for industries to understand TMCs. 

Question (Timothy Vandagriff, DTMO): How will you collect data from non-ARC reporting airlines?

Peter Kapsales Response: Data from the non-ARC reporting airlines is available when reservations are made through the TMCs or through ETS. However, if they were made directly with the airline or through another channel, we can capture the data through the SmartPay Travel Card data, if it were used as the form of payment. Additionally, we would like to make arrangements with airlines for supplier-direct data, which would be the most accurate data we could obtain.  



	Small Business Sub-Contracting 

Bernadette Mount, GSA
	Contract awards may be jeopardized or delayed if the SBA does not sign off.  It is important to note, however, that the Contracting Officer makes the final determination on approval of subcontracting plans. The goal is to increase small business opportunities under CPP sub-contracting. 

GSA is committed to meeting federal contracting rules. 

GSA wants to work with CPP contractors in a separate session to reach an agreement. It is important that each airline’s key player(s) and decision makers be present, either in person or by teleconference. Invitations will be sent out in the coming weeks for the session.  


	Question (Gary Sznajder, Continental Airlines): For the upcoming session, will invitations be extended to AMCs and sub-contractors?

Bernadette Mount Response: Yes, all are welcome to attend. 

Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): In addition to the group session, will there be one-on-one meetings between GSA and individual airlines? 

Bernadette Mount Response: Yes, there will be one-on-one sessions with regard to each airline’s individual plan. Both the group and one-on-one sessions can be done by conference call, if need be. 

Question (Gary Sznajder, Continental Airlines): Will the airlines be provided collateral (i.e., preparatory) information before the meeting? 

Bernadette Mount Response: Yes.

 

	Ticketing Time Limits and Change/Cancellation Fees 

Vincent Aquilino, GSA
	At the FY08 pre-solicitation conference, airlines expressed concern about CPP policies for ticketing time limits and change/cancellation fees. The main concern for the airlines was ticket spoilage and non-compliance with the CPP contract. 

GSA hired Runzheimer International to conduct a comprehensive study. They spoke with all CPP participants, contacted many non-participants and major DoD and federal agency customers. 

Runzheimer found that each airline had a somewhat different take on what the issues were and what sorts of ticketing time limits and change/cancellation fees they would like to see implemented. Runzheimer also found that GSA customers had several concerns:

1. That their travelers would refuse ticketing time limits as an advanced purchase requirement.

2. That communicating the program would become complicated and adherence to contract fares would suffer as travelers would view CPP fares as no different from other fares outside the program.

3. That ticketing time limits would lead to increased costs in the form of transaction fees for changes needed after ticketing. 

4. That institution of change fee and cancellation penalties will be rejected by our agency customers because of the tremendous increase in costs they would represent. 

Flexibility in travel arrangements for government travelers has always been the core value of the contract. The government has complex missions that engender unique requirements that prevent it from acting totally in a commercial manner.     

  
	Question (Tom Billone, United Airlines): So ticketing time limits are out of the question?

Vincent Aquilino Response: Ticketing time limits are very unlikely. 

Comment (George Coyle, American Airlines): Ticketing time limits allows us to manage our inventory. 

Vincent Aquilino Response: The data from the Runzheimer report does not support that statement. 

Comment (Tom Billone, United Airlines): Government travelers go directly to the airlines to avoid fees with TMC. We should be able to charge such customers with a change fee at the desk. As it is now, the airline eats the costs; it’s not fair. 

Vincent Aquilino Response: Change and cancellation fees go against the core values of the contract. 

Question (John Lundeby, HQ AMC): Would it benefit the airlines for customers to book no more than 60 or 90 days out?

Group Response (United and Northwest Airlines): Not really. Our concern is with lost inventory, i.e., spoilage – customer ditching ticket right before travel. 

Vincent Aquilino Response: The data from the Runzheimer report says that this is not the behavior of our customers. 

Comment (George Coyle, American Airlines): American Airlines wants to find a solution to this problem in the upcoming one-on-one meeting. 

Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): Could we have a group meeting on ticketing time limits and cancellation penalties with DoD in the next couple of weeks? 

Vincent Aquilino Response: OK. We need precise data from the airlines on our customers’ cancellation behavior.  

Comment (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): We can’t provide such data; it’s too difficult to obtain. 

Comment (George Coyle, American Airlines): Management tells us that spoilage is a huge issue for us, but to compile such data would cost us tens of thousands of dollars. We can’t get such funds approved. 

Comment (Michael O’Brian, United Airlines): It is unrealistic for the government to pass on cancellation fees to the airlines. Second, with regard to cancellation data, the burden of proof should not necessarily fall on the airlines. 

Vincent Aquilino Response: By asking for cancellation fees, you’re asking for money beyond that specified in the contract. We want the contract to make you money as it is. We don’t want additional spending on top of the current prices specified in the contract.  

Comment (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): The government is 25 years behind in common practices in the airline industry (i.e., cancellation fees and ticketing time limits). It’s unrealistic for the government to require that cancellation fees and ticketing time limits not be included under the contract. 

Comment (Tom Billone, United Airlines): If people abuse the program, they should pay. What’s needed is behavior modification, and the question is, How to begin such behavior modification? Currently, customer behavior is abusive towards the airlines. The government lost three airlines. When does it stop?   

Comment (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): I agree with Tom. We can’t give you any more. The alternative is non-participation, which will cost the government much more in the long run. 

Comment (Tim Burke, GSA): There has been no absolute refusal of any element of the contract. Everything is still on the table. We’re dealing with anecdotal data here; real economic data will drive decisions. Again, nothing has been dismissed out of hand. 



	
	
	


	Decisions



	Follow up meeting will be held on November 1, 2007 at 1:00 in the same location to discuss the various issues impacting airline carriers to try to reach a consensus of possible changes to the FY09 solicitation amenable to all parties of the partnership. 




	Roster



	Name


	Agency / Airline
	E-Mail
	Phone

	Rinehart, Maureen
	DTMO
	maureen.rhinehart@dtmo.pentagon.mil
	703-696-7603

	Carlock, Andrea
	DTMO
	andrea.carlock@dtmo.pentagon.mil
	703-696-6932

	Timothy, Vandagriff
	DTMO
	timothy.vandagriff@dtmo.pentagon.mil
	703-695-8072

	Bala, Lawrence C.
	AMC
	lawrence.bala@scott.af.mil
	618-229-4592

	Harrington, D. Curtis
	HQ USAF
	odeu.harrington@pentagon.af.mil
	703-697-9560

	Holmes, Michael Lt. Col.
	
	
	703-601-4461 x110

	Grigsby, Lee
	Delta Airline
	lee.grigsby@delta.com
	404-715-3896

	Ivester, Ron
	CWT
	ron.ivester@satotravel.com
	804-674-1199

	McMahon, Kevin
	AirTran Airways
	kevin.mcmahon@airtran.com
	407-318-5259

	Junk, Josh
	AirTran Airways
	josh.junk@airtran.com
	863-258-2739

	Billone, Tom
	United Airlines
	thomas.billone@united.com
	703-661-7611

	Lundeby, John
	HQ AMC
	john.lundeby@scott.af.mil
	618-229-4593

	Coyle, George
	American Airlines
	george.e.coyle@aa.com
	817-931-0378

	Sisson, Sara
	Northwest Airlines
	sara.sisson@nwa.com
	202-289-3589

	Clifford, Denny
	Northwest Airlines
	denny.clifford@nwa.com
	202-289-6323

	O’Brian, Michael
	United Airlines
	michael.obrian@united.com
	847-700-2991

	Walker, Herbert
	DOT
	herbert.walker@dot.gov
	202-366-0300

	Sznajder, Gary
	Continental Airlines
	gsznaj@coair.com
	713-324-2700

	Arbeiter, Pam 
	MidWest Airlines
	Pam.arbeiter@midwestairlines.com
	414-570-3652


